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The International Multimedia Telecommunications Consortium (IMTC) is an industry organization representing over 100 equipment manufacturers, service providers, and users of multimedia telecommunication systems around the world.

IMTC has followed the progress of the “H.26L” video codec standard, and MPEG’s interest in working together with VCEG, with great interest.  IMTC feels the dramatic video coding improvements of this technology offer tremendous potential benefit to our industry.

IMTC would like to strongly encourage both standardization organizations to proceed with this work, and to take into account the following requirements:

1. There must be a single, common video codec standard, which is fully interoperable regardless of whether the ITU or ISO standard is used.  At all costs, avoid differing standards that could lead to failures of interoperability.

2. There should be a set of relatively few “profiles”, or variations of the standard for different applications, instead of individually selectable options.  The number of mode permutations that must be implemented for a given application should be kept as small as possible, preferably just one.  These “profiles” should be defined simply, and it should be clear which ought to be used for any given application.

3. The standard should include a definition of a standardized “file format” for storage of compressed video.  This format should permit random access to the video information.

4. The new standard should be given a single “nickname” which is the same regardless of the use of  ISO or ITU versions of the standard.  This will eliminate any possible confusion or implication of incompatibility. 

5. At least the common, or “baseline” mode of the standard should be unencumbered by patents requiring royalty fees for their use.  Patents on “extended” versions of the standard should be as few as practically possible, with any royalty fees required limited to those economically supportable for the intended applications.

6. To the extent possible, the standard should make use of simple, well-known techniques that are not exceptionally difficult to implement.

7. The computational complexity of algorithms used in the standard should be reasonable in terms of actual implementation hardware platforms available in the commercial marketplace today.  At a minimum, compression performance should at least match that of preceding standards (MPEG-4, H.263) for the same number of cycles.

8. The standard should offer the best achievable compression performance possible, at a minimum a 50% bit rate reduction vs. H.263 and MPEG-4.  Our understanding is that this has already been achieved (or more) by the draft H.26L; we encourage further improvements.

9. The maximum possible participation of technical experts in the deliberations leading to the final standard should be permitted, in order to ensure the best possible technical design (within the other constraints given).

10. In order to encourage the widest and fastest possible adoption of the new standard, in addition to textual description of the standard, there should also be software code that provides a reference implementation of the standard (this need not operate in real-time).  This software should be publicly available via Web or FTP, and the copyright in it should be either in the public domain, or held by the standardization organizations, with an appropriate license allowing unlimited use for test, evaluation, and development of products making use of the standard. 

11. Draft versions of the standard, and versions submitted for final approval, should be posted publicly via the Web or FTP, so that potential users of the standard can begin design and planning for deployment as soon as possible.

IMTC’s membership looks eagerly forward to the successful completion of your project, and is interested in aiding it in any way we can, including performing interoperability testing at the appropriate stage.  IMTC has considerable experience organizing interoperability testing for multimedia standards, having performed these for H.261 and H.263 video interoperability, as well as for the H.320, H.323, H.324, and T.120 systems.

We wish you the best of luck with your work.

Sincerely,







Jim Polizotto
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